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LINCOLN UNIVERSITY 
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 
    

AMENDMENT NO: 001 REQ NO.:     
RFP NO.:   B16-1104 BUYER: DEBRA KIDWELL 
TITLE:  AUDITING SERVICES PHONE NO.:  (573) 681-5415 
ISSUE DATE: APRIL 26, 2016 E-MAIL: kidwelld@lincolnu.edu 
    
RETURN PROPOSAL NO LATER THAN:  MAY 3, 2016 AT 2 P.M. CENTRAL TIME 

 
MAILING INSTRUCTIONS: Print or type RFP Number and Return Due Date on the lower left hand corner of the envelope or 

package. Delivered sealed proposals must be in the Lincoln University Purchasing Department 
(1002 Chestnut St, Room 101) by the return date and time. 

 
    (courier service) 
RETURN PROPOSAL TO:  LINCOLN UNIVERSITY 
    1002 CHESTNUT ST 
    SHIPPING & RECEIVING BLDG 
    JEFFERSON CITY MO 65101 
 
CONTRACT PERIOD:  JULY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2017, WITH THE OPTION TO 
RENEW THE CONTRACT FOR FOUR (4) ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR PERIODS. 
 
The offeror hereby declares understanding, agreement and certification of compliance to provide the items and/or services, at the prices quoted, in 
accordance with all requirements and specifications contained herein and the Terms and Conditions Request for Proposal (Revised 04/23/2010). The 
offeror further agrees that the language of this RFP shall govern in the event of a conflict with his/her proposal. The offeror further agrees that upon 
receipt of an authorized purchase order from Lincoln University or when this RFP is countersigned by an authorized official of Lincoln University, a 
binding contract shall exist between the offeror and Lincoln University. 

 
SIGNATURE REQUIRED 

 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 
 

DATE 

PRINTED NAME 
 

TITLE 

DOING BUSINESS AS (DBA) NAME  LEGAL NAME OF ENTITY/INDIVIDUAL FILED WITH IRS FOR THIS TAX ID # 

MAILING ADDRESS IRS FORM 1099 MAILING ADDRESS 

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE 
  

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE 

VENDOR NO. (IF KNOWN) TAXPAYER ID NUMBER (TIN)  TAXPAYER ID (TIN) TYPE (CHECK ONE) 

                    �   FEIN      or       �  SSN 
VENDOR TAX FILING TYPE WITH IRS (CHECK ONE) 

          � Corporation            �  Individual           � State/Local Government        � Partnership           �  Sole Proprietor            �   Other 
 CONTACT PERSON E-MAIL ADDRESS 

PHONE NUM BER. FAX NUMBER 

 
NOTICE OF AWARD (LINCOLN UNIVERSITY ONLY) 

 
ACCEPTED BY LINCOLN UNIVERSITY AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
CONTRACT NO. CONTRACT PERIOD 

BUYER 
 

DATE PURCHASING DIRECTOR 
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AMENDMENT #001 TO RFP B16-1104 
 
DATED: APRIL 26, 2016 
 
TITLE: AUDITING SERVICES 
 
 
RFP B16-1104 IS HEREBY AMENDED WITH THE FOLLOWING REVISIONS AND ADDITIONS: 
 
Please see the additional information provided in response to questions submitted. 
 
Q1: Does the University use a third party to process student refunds? If so, have you fully implemented the new 
cash management changes recently published?   

A1: The University does not use a third party to process student refunds. 
 
Q2: Can you share a little insight on your experience of implementing GASB 68? Did you perform any type of 
pro-forma analysis or discussions to forecast what the impact would be to your board, interested parties, etc? If 
not, would you be interested in similar analysis as it relates to other future authoritative pronouncements? 

A2: The University’s current auditing firm made the University aware of the upcoming changes well in 
advance as well as the implications of its implementation.  MOSERS, the State of Missouri retirement 
system, provided all required documentation as well as sample journal entries.  The current auditing 
firm also reviewed the proposed journal entries prior to the audit and provided templates for the 
financial statements to reflect the changes due to implementation. 

 
Q3: Any major transactions or events in 2015/2016 that would significantly impact the financial position of the 
University?   

A3: In 2015, the University did a combined refunding and new issue of a revenue bond series.  The 2015 
A & B Series total $6.1 million. 
 The University currently has several major construction projects underway including the Wellness 
Center, the renovation of Martin Hall, the renovation of Young Hall and the President’s Residence and 
roof repairs on several buildings.  These projects are being supported by Title III funding , a 
cooperative agreement with the City of Jefferson/Parks & Recreation, the 2015 B Revenue Bond Series 
issue, and Missouri House Bill 19 bond funding.  The University’s Board of Curators approved utilizing 
fund balance to support the Wellness Center as well as other projects. 

 
Q4: Has the University had any recent (within the last 2 years) compliance reviews/audits conducted by 
regulatory or other oversight bodies (State of Missouri, Dept. of Ed, other grantors, etc).  
Any audits from State auditors, IRS, Department of Education or other regulatory agencies in the past two 
years? If yes, what were the results of such examination(s)? 

A4: The IRS recently completed an audit of the University which resulted in adjustments and a penalty.  
The MO Department of Health and Senior Services has reviewed an awarded grant.  The MO State 
Auditor’s office is currently requesting information from all state-funded higher education institutions 
related to tuition and fee revenue. 

 
Q5: Do you have any classes or programs that are accounted for as non-term or nonstandard terms for Student 
Financial Assistance? 
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A5: The University does not have any non-term or nonstandard terms. 
 
Q6: How many federal programs do you anticipate having to be audited for FY15? 

A6: The University relies on the external auditing firm to determine the type of federal programs 
required to be audited annually. 

 
Q7: When is the audit of the foundation normally completed by (for purposes of planning for the inclusion of 
this information in the University’s report)? 

A7: The final report is generally issued by the end of September. 
 
Q8: Has a minority and/or women-owned business historically been subcontracted to perform any functions of 
the annual audits? 

A8: Historically, all functions of the annual audit have been performed by the awarded firm. 
 
Q9: What factors does the University view as being important in its relationship with a CPA firm? 

A9: The University values knowledge and experience in regards to current and upcoming 
pronouncements, guidance, and regulations.  The University expects the awarded firm and the on-site 
audit team to be knowledgeable and experienced.  The University also values the availability of the 
awarded firm to answer questions posed by the University via phone call and/or email at no additional 
cost. 

 
Q10: Regarding current service provider:  
What factors would you prefer to see changed in your current service provider? 
Did the current service provider do an adequate job providing the University with updates on new GASB 
pronouncements and accounting standards changes? 
Did the current service provider do an adequate and timely job communicating any pricing changes due to new 
GASB pronouncements or accounting standards changes, if any. 
Any disagreements with your current auditor? 
Is the University satisfied with the level and commitment to diversity of the current service providers audit 
team? 
What was the reason for sending out request for proposal such as, rotational, best practices, issues with prior 
CPA firm, checking prices of current services or another reason?  
Were there any disputes with the prior auditor which resulted in the RFP or is the RFP process routinely 
conducted periodically?  If there were any disputes, I need to know the nature of same. 
Has the incumbent firm been invited to bid on this RFP? 

A10: The University policy requires contractual services exceeding $25,000 be formally bid every five 
years. The last RFP for audit services was issued in 2011. 
 

Q11: Does the University ever have a need for additional services from its service provider? 
A11: The University occasionally has need of additional services outside the scope of this award.  The 
proposer may submit a list of additional services the firm offers for the University’s information. 

 
Q12: In addition to the audit fees were any additional fees charged in the past and for what services? 

A12: In the last five years, the University has not engaged the external audit firm for additional services 
outside of the standard audit requirements listed in the RFP. 
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Q13: Does the current audit firm assist the University with preparing any supporting schedules, reconciliations 
etc. for the financial statements? Will all accounts be reconciled? 

A13: The University prepares all supporting schedules and reconciliations using Excel templates.  
However, if the awarded audit firm requires specific schedules, templates are preferred.  The current 
audit firm provides templates for final financial statement format.  The University reconciles all 
accounts. 

  
Q14: Are all accounts required to be reconciled on a monthly basis and if so are all account reconciliations 
current? Are monthly financial statements provided to the board? 

A14: The University reconciles all significant accounts on a monthly basis and is up-to-date in doing so.  
The University prepares monthly financial statements for internal consumption only.  They are not 
prepared on a full accrual basis.  The Board of Curators meets at a minimum of five times per year.  The 
Board is provided the most recent monthly financial statement at each regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
Q15: Does the University have a documented financial procedures manual? Does the University have its accounting 
policies and procedures (system of internal controls) documented? 

A15: Each unit has a “desk manual” documenting procedures. 
 

Q16: The University indicates that they have a quarter-time FTE internal auditor; however, the internal auditor 
has not assisted with external audit procedures in the past.  Can you clarify what type of work the quarter-time 
FTE internal auditor does?  What other responsibilities do they have outside of internal audit?  How much time 
(hours) would the quarter-time internal auditor have to assist with external audit procedures and when would 
that availability of time occur? 

A16: The University’s internal auditor conducts audits upon request.  Her primary duties are as Fiscal 
Affairs Specialist for the University Foundation.  Dependent upon the Foundation audit schedule and 
her other duties, the internal auditor may be available to assist the awarded firm if advanced notice is 
provided. 
 

Q17: How many auditors were on the audit team during the 2015 audit and for how many days? In prior years, 
what is the size of the audit team in the field? Is the University comfortable with this size team? 

A17: The following historical information has been provided for informational purposes only and is not 
intended to be used as a guideline for the vendor’s proposal for upcoming services.  It is expected that 
the selected firm will assign adequate staffing to successfully complete the audit.  In July for the 
preliminary fieldwork/student financial aid audit 2-3 auditors are on-site for one week. In August for the 
fieldwork/A-133 audit, 2-4 auditors are on-site for two weeks.  In September for the review of financial 
reports/KJLU audit, 2-3 auditors are on-site for one week. 
 

Q18: Were any audit adjustments proposed during the 6/30/15 and 6/30/14 audits?  If so, what types of 
adjustments were proposed and what was their impact on net position each year? How many adjusting journal 
entries did the 2015 auditors propose as a result of audit procedures? Any passed audit adjustments identified in 
the past? 

A18: In FY15, the University proposed one adjusting entry while the auditors were onsite due to the late 
receipt of an invoice.  The auditors did not propose any recommended adjustments in FY15 or FY14 for 
the standard audit.  No audit adjustments were passed during this same period.  During the FY15 KJLU 
radio audit, the auditors proposed adjusting entries for investments through the Foundation not notated 
on the information submitted to the auditors.  Adjustments were made based upon recommendations. 
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Q19: Does the University expect any significant changes in federal grants and/or other funding sources in FY 
2016?  If yes, please describe. 

A19: The University does not expect any significant changes in federal grants in FY16. 
 

Q20: Was any type of review of information technology controls performed under the financial statement audit?  
If yes, please describe. 

A20: The University completes an internal control questionnaire provided by the current firm for 
several areas including information technology. 

 
Q21: Is the University PCI compliant? 

A21: The University utilizes Ellucian Colleague as the administrative accounting system.  Colleague 
does not store credit card information. The University works with the Merchant Card Services 
department of our banking services provider to ensure PCI compliance. 

 
Q22: Please describe any training, procedural changes or actions taken to conform with the new Uniformed 
Guidance regulations. Has the University implemented new regulatory standards and requirements under 
Uniform Grant Guidance?   

A22: The University follows federal regulations related to grant and contract administration.  The 
Uniform Guidance, 2 CFR 200, was published in February 2016.  The University is currently reviewing 
its policies and procedures to ensure compliance with the new regulations.   

 
Q23: Does the University’s audit committee perform an annual risk assessment? 

A23: No. 
 
Q24: What were the total fees charged in 2015 for the Audit, single audit, NCAA, radio station and housing 
bond audits, as well as out-of-pocket travel costs? Were any additional fees charged outside of the agreed upon 
scope of services?  Do you mind sharing the prior year’s fees broken down as requested in the RFP? What was 
the cost for the 2015 audit services? 

A24: Audit of the University's financial statements & performance of the federal funds audit in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 $77,000; Audit of the University's CPB Radio Station $7,700; 
Audit of the University's NCAA (performed every three years) $16,000; Actual out-of-pocket expenses 
$5,600  

 
Q25: Can you please provide us with a PDF copy of any management letter(s) issued as part of the fiscal year 
2015 audit for our consideration? 

A25: Document(s) follows. 
 
Q26: When the AUP for the University’s NCAA athletics program was conducted for 2015, did it identify any 
issues/concerns that had to be reported?  If yes, can you share those issues and a copy of the report related 
thereto? 

A26: Document(s) follows. 
 
Q27: Can you share a copy of KULU most recent audit report? 

A27: Document(s) follows. 
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